
Town Council Agenda 1  November 15, 2022 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA  

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS/MICROSOFT “TEAMS”  

740 MAIN STREET  

EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT  

NOVEMBER 15, 2022 

 

REVISED 11/14/2022       

=================================================================== 

This Town Council meeting is accessible through “Microsoft Teams” 929-235-8441 
Conference ID: 340 287 507# or click on this link: Click here to join the meeting 

This meeting can be viewed through Comcast channel 96 and 1090 and Frontier channel 
6018 or by clicking on https://ehct.viebit.com   

Pledge of Allegiance 7:30 p.m. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA 

3. RECOGNITIONS AND AWARDS 

4. OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON AGENDA 
ITEMS 

A. Other Elected Officials 
B. Other Residents 
C. Mayor 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A. November 1, 2022 Executive Session 
B. November 1, 2022 Regular Meeting 

6. COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS  
A. Ordinance 10-3(c)- Disposition of Obsolete or Broken Town-Owned 
 Equipment by East Hartford Fire Department 

7. OLD BUSINESS 
A.  Recommendation from Fees Committee re: Greater Hartford Transit  
 District Ticket Books 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Amendment of Conservation Easement re: Rentschler Field  
B. Authorization of Municipal Tax-Exempt Capital Lease Purchase 

Agreement 
C. Demolition and Disposal of Town Building at 70 Canterbury Street aka  
 “McCartin School” 
D. O’Brien School Roof Replacement Project 
E. CT Department of Transportation “Click It or Ticket” Grant 
F. Amusement Permit Application- East Hartford Holiday Fest 
G. Refund of Taxes 
 

tel:+1%20929-235-8441,,25704167
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZWI5YmY2NjItZTk4OC00MmUyLTg3N2ItNTJlM2I1OTUyOTA5%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2287da8af4-4bef-47df-81f6-2cd460cbb560%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22adbe2f67-5e02-469a-ae80-8d192b3a8837%22%7d


Town Council Agenda 2  November 15, 2022 

H. Construction and Maintenance Agreement with Connecticut Southern  
 Railroad re: McAuliffe Park crossing 

 
   9.    OPPORTUNITY FOR COUNCILLORS TO DIRECT QUESTIONS TO THE  
     ADMINISTRATION 

10.   COUNCIL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTERS  

11.   OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO SPEAK 
A. Other Elected Officials 
B. Other Residents 
C. Mayor 

 12.   ADJOURNMENT (next meeting: December 13, 2022) 



Town Council Agenda 1  November 15, 2022 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA  

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS/MICROSOFT “TEAMS”  

740 MAIN STREET  

EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT  

NOVEMBER 15, 2022 

 

         

=================================================================== 

This Town Council meeting is accessible through “Microsoft Teams” 929-235-8441 
Conference ID: 340 287 507# or click on this link: Click here to join the meeting 

This meeting can be viewed through Comcast channel 96 and 1090 and Frontier channel 
6018 or by clicking on https://ehct.viebit.com   

Pledge of Allegiance 7:30 p.m. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA 

3. RECOGNITIONS AND AWARDS 

4. OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON AGENDA 
ITEMS 

A. Other Elected Officials 
B. Other Residents 
C. Mayor 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A. November 1, 2022 Executive Session 
B. November 1, 2022 Regular Meeting 

6. COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS  
A. Ordinance 10-3(c)- Disposition of Obsolete or Broken Town-Owned 
 Equipment by East Hartford Fire Department 

7. OLD BUSINESS 
A.  Recommendation from Fees Committee re: Greater Hartford Transit  
 District Ticket Books 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Amendment of Conservation Easement re: Rentschler Field  
B. Authorization of Municipal Tax-Exempt Capital Lease Purchase 

Agreement 
C. Demolition and Disposal of Town Building at 70 Canterbury Street aka  
 “McCartin School” 
D. O’Brien School Roof Replacement Project 
E. CT Department of Transportation “Click It or Ticket” Grant 
F. Amusement Permit Application- East Hartford Holiday Fest 
G. Refund of Taxes 
 

tel:+1%20929-235-8441,,25704167
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZWI5YmY2NjItZTk4OC00MmUyLTg3N2ItNTJlM2I1OTUyOTA5%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2287da8af4-4bef-47df-81f6-2cd460cbb560%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22adbe2f67-5e02-469a-ae80-8d192b3a8837%22%7d


Town Council Agenda 2  November 15, 2022 

 
   9.    OPPORTUNITY FOR COUNCILLORS TO DIRECT QUESTIONS TO THE  
     ADMINISTRATION 

10.   COUNCIL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTERS  

11. OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO SPEAK 
A. Other Elected Officials 
B. Other Residents 
C. Mayor 

 12. ADJOURNMENT (next meeting: December 13, 2022) 



 

November 1, 2022 1 Volume 91 

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

November 1, 2022 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

PRESENT Chair Richard F. Kehoe, Vice Chair Donald Bell, Jr., Majority  
IN CHAMBERS   Leader Sebrina Wilson, Minority Leader John Morrison, Councilors 

Angela Parkinson, Harry O. Amadasun, Jr., Awet Tsegai (via Teams), 
Thomas Rup and Travis Simpson 

 
ABSENT  
 
ALSO    Mayor Michael P. Walsh  
PRESENT   James Tallberg, Corporation Counsel 
   Brian Smith, Tax Assessor 
   Eileen Buckheit, Development Director 
   Attorney Joseph Hope, Alter & Pearson, LLC 
      
       
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Kehoe called the meeting to order at 6:36 p.m. 
 
MOTION By John Morrison 
  seconded by Don Bell 
 

to go into Executive Session to discuss: 
 

A.    The pending assessment (tax) appeal known as C2HPS LLC v. 
Town of East Hartford - HHB-CV22-6073227-S, involving real 
property located at 43-45 Thomas Street, East Hartford for the 
Grand List year 2021. 

 
B. The pending assessment (tax) appeal known as Gjonbalaj, Mal v. 

Town of East Hartford - HHB CV22 - 6072901-S, involving real 
property located at 110 Silver Lane, East Hartford for the Grand 
List year 2021. 

 
C.   The potential acquisition by the town of East Hartford of 794-810 

Silver Lane and 818-850 Silver Lane a.k.a. Silver Lane Plaza 
 
Motion carried 9/0. 

 
MOTION By John Morrison 
  seconded by Don Bell 
  
  to go back to Regular Session. 
 

Motion carried 9/0. 



 

November 1, 2022 2 Volume 91 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION By John Morrison 
  seconded by Don Bell 
 
  to adjourn at 7:45 pm 
 
  Motion carried 9/0. 
   

Attest____________________________ 
Richard F. Kehoe 

                  Town Council Chair 



 
 
November 1, 2022  Volume 91 1 

EAST HARTFORD TOWN COUNCIL  
 

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

November 1, 2022 
 
PRESENT Chair Richard F. Kehoe, Vice Chair Donald Bell, Jr., Majority Leader Sebrina 

Wilson, Minority Leader John Morrison, Councillors Angela Parkinson, Awet 
Tsegai (via Teams), Travis Simpson, Thomas Rup and Harry Amadasun, Jr. 

 
ABSENT   
 
ALSO  Mayor Michael Walsh    
PRESENT Eileen Buckheit, Development Director 
  Cephus Nolan, Director of Youth Services 
    
  
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Kehoe called the meeting to order at 7:51 pm.  The Chair stated that this meeting  
was also available to the public through the “Teams” platform. 
 
The Chair announced the exit locations in accordance with Connecticut General Statutes  
§29-381, after which the Council joined him in the pledge of allegiance. 
 
AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 
MOTION By Sebrina Wilson 
   seconded by John Morrison 
 

to remove Item 8A Lease Renewal Agreement with East Hartford 
Community Television from the agenda. 

 
   Motion carried 9/0. 

 
RECOGNITIONS AND AWARDS 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Pasquale “Bud” Salemi, 17 Pheasant Lane, spoke on behalf of the candidacies of Joan 
Gentile and himself as Commissioners of the Metropolitan District Commission.   
 
Mayor Walsh stated (1) wished all a good evening; (2) A public hearing to discuss 
potential Planning and Zoning Regulation revisions is scheduled for November 3rd at 6 pm 
in Town Council Chambers; (3) The recent edition of the Pulse of East Hartford was 
released on 11/1; (4) Public Works began leaf collection on Monday, October 31st and 
will continue through December 10, weather-permitting; (5) The East Hartford Health 
Department will be holding two public flu/COVID-19 booster clinics in November; (6) 
November is National Smoking Cessation Month; (7) The Town has begun the 
development of an Affordable Housing Plan as required by state law.  East Hartford 
residents are asked to complete a survey on the current housing situation; (8) The 



 
 
November 1, 2022  Volume 91 2 

statewide general election will take place on Tuesday, November 8, 2022, from 6 AM to 8 
PM; (9) East Hartford Works! invites all individuals who are new homeowners or are about 
to purchase their first home, to an information session to be held Wednesday, November 
9 from 6:30 to 7:30 PM at the East Hartford Public Library, located at 840 Main Street; 
(10) A wreath-laying ceremony at the World War I memorial in front of Raymond Library in 
honor of all Veterans will be held on the front lawn of the Raymond Library at 840 Main 
Street in East Hartford on Veterans Day, November 11, 2022 at 10:30 am; (11) All town 
offices, including the East Hartford Transfer Station, will be closed Friday, November 11, 
2022 in observance of Veterans’ Day. Leaf collection will not occur on that Friday.  
Curbside trash and recycling pickup will run on schedule with no delays. (12) A 
presentation on the “McCooks of Main Street” is scheduled at the East Hartford Public 
Library for Thursday, November 3rd at 6:30 PM; (13) Threads of Assumption artists invite 
the community to participate in the upcoming art exhibition on Thursday, November 17 
from 6 – 7:30 PM in the East Hartford Public Library Makerspace; (14) November 1st was 
the final day to sign up for Town Thanksgiving and Christmas assistance programs; (15) 
An Affordable Connectivity Program (ACP), a federal Internet subsidy is available for all 
families with students in East Hartford Public Schools to save on monthly internet fees; 
(16) East Hartford Resident Advisory Council meetings occur every third Monday from 
Noon-1 PM via Zoom; (17) Administration asks for residents to help “fight the blight” and 
report any issues of concern through “My East Hartford” app: (18) Teen and Adult Social 
Club is hosting bowling at Silver Lanes on November 11th.  This event is open to 
participants with special needs ages 13 & up; (19) Youth basketball clinics are now 
available online at ehparks.org; (20) East Hartford is looking to create a network of 
volunteers to assist with a variety of volunteer tasks.  Please check the Town website for 
more information; (21) The Chamber of Commerce is hosting a networking session on the 
second Thursday of the month from 9-10:15 AM at the Goodwin University Community 
Room; (22) A number of Town Officials recently attended the grand opening of The 
Russell, a restaurant on Main Street; (23) The next Small Business Support open hours 
will be on Friday, November 18, 10:30 AM-12:30 PM at the East Hartford Public Library; 
(24) The “Crime Stats” daily arrest log will be posted weekly on the Town website; (25) 
The Fire Chief has provided a list of fire safety tips to keep families safe in the coming 
cold weather months. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
October 18, 2022 Executive Meeting 
 
MOTION By Sebrina Wilson 
   seconded by Tom Rup 
 
   to approve the minutes of the October 18, 2022 Executive Meeting. 

 
   Motion carried 9/0. 
 
October 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 
 
MOTION By Sebrina Wilson 
   seconded by John Morrison 
 
   to approve the minutes of the October 18, 2022 Regular Meeting. 

 



 
 
November 1, 2022  Volume 91 3 

   Motion carried 9/0. 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS 
 
Resignations from Town Boards and Commissions 

The Chair stated that Kim Tipton and Joseph Garabedian have resigned from the 
Commission on Persons with Disabilities.  There is a list of open positions available on a 
number of various boards and commissions via the Town website and the Chair 
encouraged residents to contact either the Mayor’s office or Town Council office if there is 
an interest in participating. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Lease Renewal Agreement with East Hartford Community Television 

This item has been removed from the agenda. 
 
East Hartford Juvenile Review Board Support and Enhancement Grant 

MOTION By Don Bell 
  seconded by Angie Parkinson 
  to adopt the following resolution: 

 
WHEREAS; the State of Connecticut, through the Connecticut Youth  
Services Association (CYSA) has made funding available for the support and 
enhancement of the East Hartford Juvenile Review Board (JRB), and;  

 
WHEREAS; the JRB offers a meaningful alternative to criminal court for East 
Hartford youth, ages 9-17, referred by the East Hartford Police Department, Public 
Schools and Youth Services, 
 
NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED; that Michael P. Walsh, Mayor of the 
Town of East Hartford, is authorized to make application to, and execute and 
approve on behalf of this corporation, any and all documents, contracts, and 
amendments as may be required by the State of Connecticut and/or the CYSA as 
they pertain to this JRB Support and Enhancement Grant. 

 
  On call of the vote, the motion carried 9/0 
 
State Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services Local Prevention Council 
Grant 

 
MOTION By Angie Parkinson 
  seconded by John Morrison 
  to adopt the following resolution: 
 



 
 
November 1, 2022  Volume 91 4 

 WHEREAS, the State of Connecticut Department of Mental Health and Addiction 
Services (DMHAS) has made funding available to support local substance use 
disorder prevention for youth, and; 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town’s Department of Youth Services wishes to use these funds 

to support activities geared toward alcohol, tobacco, and other drug (ATOD) abuse 
prevention.  

 
 LET IT BE RESOLVED, that Michael P. Walsh, Mayor of the Town of East 

Hartford, is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of this municipality a grant 
application in an amount not to exceed $7,142 with the State of Connecticut 
Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services to support the activities of a 
local alcohol, tobacco, and other drug abuse Prevention Council, and to execute 
and file any contracts, amendments or reports as may be required to successfully 
complete the terms of the grant contract. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Mayor Michael P. Walsh’s term of office began 

on November 8, 2021 and will continue until November 13, 2023.  As Mayor, 
Michael P. Walsh serves as the Chief Executive Officer for the Town of East 
Hartford, and is duly authorized to enter into agreements and contracts on behalf 
of the Town of East Hartford. 

 
  On call of the vote, the motion carried 9/0 
 
Recommendation from Fees Committee re: Greater Hartford Transit District Ticket 
Books 
 
MOTION By Harry Amadasun 
  seconded by Tom Rup 
 

to table the item 8D Recommendation from Fees Committee re: Greater 
Hartford Transit District Ticket Books pending further discussion. 
 

  Motion carried 9/0. 
 
Re-Appointments to Metropolitan District Commission 
 
MOTION By Don Bell 
  seconded by Travis Simpson 
 

to re-appoint Joan Gentile, 1871 Main St, East Hartford, 06108 and 
Pasquale J. Salemi, 17 Pheasant Lane, East Hartford, 06108 as 
Commissioners of the Metropolitan District Commission; terms to expire 
December 2028. 

  Motion carried 9/0. 
 
Town acquisition of 794-810 Silver Lane and 818-850 Silver Lane a.k.a. Silver Lane 
Plaza: 
 
Authorization to Acquire Property 
 



 
 
November 1, 2022  Volume 91 5 

MOTION By Angie Parkinson 
  seconded by Don Bell 
  to adopt the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS, The East Hartford Town Council is considering the acquisition of 
794-810 Silver Lane (Tax Assessor’s Map/Lot 45/130) and 818-850 Silver Lane 
(Tax Assessor’s Map/Lot 45/131) (the “Silver Lane Properties”) by eminent 
domain under the previously approved Silver Lane Redevelopment Plan: 
Chapter 130 Redevelopment, prepared for the Town of East Hartford, CT dated 
May 25, 2022 (“Plan”); and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 130 of the Connecticut General 
Statutes, the East Hartford Redevelopment Agency held duly noticed public 
hearings on August 25, 2022 and October 27, 2022 to consider the proposed 
acquisition of the Silver Lane Properties by eminent domain; and 
 
WHEREAS, at its meeting on October 27, 2022, the East Hartford 
Redevelopment Agency voted to approve the acquisition of the Silver Lane 
Properties by eminent domain and refer the proposed acquisition to the East 
Hartford Town Council for its approval in accordance with Chapter 130 of the 
Connecticut General Statutes; and 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 130 of the Connecticut General Statutes provides that the 
East Hartford Redevelopment Agency may acquire the Silver Lane Properties 
by eminent domain, in the name of the Town of East Hartford (the “Town”,) with 
the approval of the East Hartford Town Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the East Hartford Town Council has reviewed the two appraisals 
for each of the Silver Lane Properties prepared for the Town, and understands 
the conditions of, conditions affecting, uses, and other salient facts and 
characteristics of the Silver Lane Properties, including the fair market value of 
the Silver Lane Properties; and 
 
WHEREAS, the East Hartford Town Council has (I) considered the benefits to 
the public and any private entity that will result from the redevelopment project 
set forth in the Plan and determined that the public benefits outweigh any 
private benefits for each of the Silver Lane Properties, (II) determined that the 
current use of each of the Silver Lane Properties cannot be feasibly integrated 
into the overall redevelopment plan, and (III) determined that the acquisition of 
each of the Silver Lane Properties by eminent domain is reasonably necessary 
to successfully achieve the objectives of the redevelopment plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Silver Lane Properties are not being acquired by eminent 
domain for the primary purpose of increasing local tax revenue; and 
 
WHEREAS, the East Hartford Town Council believes that the acquisition of the 
Silver Lane Properties by eminent domain is in the best interests of the Town. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED: That pursuant to Chapter 
130 of the Connecticut General Statutes, the acquisition of the real property 
known as 794-810 Silver Lane (Tax Assessor’s Map/Lot 45/130) and 818-850 
Silver Lane (Tax Assessor’s Map/Lot 45/131) (the “Silver Lane Properties”) by 



 
 
November 1, 2022  Volume 91 6 

the East Hartford Redevelopment Agency by eminent domain, in the name of 
the Town of East Hartford, is hereby approved. 
 
RESOLVED: That the acquisition of the Silver Lane Properties by the East 
Hartford Redevelopment Agency by eminent domain, in the name of the Town, 
shall occur within five (5) years from the date of this Resolution. 
 
RESOLVED: That, upon the recommendation of the Mayor and certification 
from the Director of Finance that there is available unappropriated and 
unencumbered funds to meet such appropriation, the Town hereby 
appropriates the sum of Four Million Five Hundred Thirty-Five Thousand 
Dollars ($4,535,000) for the costs associated with the acquisition of such Silver 
Lane Properties. 
 
RESOLVED: That, in accordance with the Connecticut General Statutes, the 
East Hartford Redevelopment Agency and the Mayor, or any designee of the 
Mayor, are hereby authorized to make, execute and deliver all such additional 
and supplemental documents, and to do and perform such acts and to take 
such actions as may be necessary or required for the acquisition of the Silver 
Lane Properties. 

 
  On call of the vote, the motion carried 9/0. 
 
Appropriation of Funds 
 
MOTION By Angie Parkinson 
  seconded by Don Bell 
  to adopt the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS, at the May 26, 2022 meeting of the State Bond Commission, the 
Commission approved a grant-in-aid to the Town of East Hartford in the amount of 
$10 million to assist with the redevelopment of the Silver Lane Corridor; and 

 
WHEREAS, included in the approved list of eligible projects was future site 
acquisition and renovations within the Corridor; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 1, 2022, the East Hartford Town Council approved the 
acquisition of the real property known as 794-810 Silver Lane (Tax Assessor’s 
Map/Lot 45/130) and 818-850 Silver Lane (Tax Assessor’s Map/Lot 45/131) (the 
“Silver Lane Properties”) by the East Hartford Redevelopment Agency by eminent 
domain, in the name of the Town of East Hartford; and, 

 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the East Hartford Town Council does 
hereby approve the following items: 
1. The expenditure of Four Million Five Hundred Thirty-Five Thousand Dollars 
($4,535,000) for the costs associated with the acquisition of such Silver Lane 
Properties. 
2. The funding source will be the $10 million in State Bond Commission funds for 
the redevelopment of the Silver Lane Corridor. 

 
  On call of the vote, the motion carried 9/0. 
 



 
 
November 1, 2022  Volume 91 7 

OPPORTUNITY FOR COUNCILLORS TO DIRECT QUESTIONS TO THE ADMINISTRATION 
 
Councillor Simpson asked the Mayor to confirm if the East Hartford’s Superintendent of schools, 
Nathan Quesnel is leaving the position.  The Mayor confirmed that Mr. Quesnel intends to leave 
at the end of the school year.   
 
COUNCIL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTERS 
 
The pending assessment (tax) appeal known as C2HPS LLC v. Town of East Hartford 
- HHB-CV22-6073227-S, involving real property located at 43-45 Thomas Street, East 
Hartford for the Grand List year 2021. 
 
MOTION By Sebrina Wilson 
  seconded by Travis Simpson 

 
to accept the recommendation of Corporation Counsel to settle the pending 
assessment (tax) appeal known as C2HPS LLC v. TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD, 
Docket Number HHB-CV22-6073227-S, involving real property located at 43-45 
Thomas Street, East Hartford from the fair market value of $759,171.00 to the fair 
market value of $723,000.00 which shall generate a reduction of $1,250.00 in 
property taxes, for the Grand List Year of 2021. 
 

  Motion carried 9/0. 
 
The pending assessment (tax) appeal known as Gjonbalaj, Mal v. Town of East 
Hartford - HHB CV22 - 6072901-S, involving real property located at 110 Silver Lane, 
East Hartford for the Grand List year 2021. 
 
MOTION By Sebrina Wilson 
  seconded by Travis Simpson 

 
to accept the recommendation of Corporation Counsel to settle the pending 
assessment (tax) appeal known as GJONBALAJ, MAL v. TOWN OF EAST 
HARTFORD, Docket Number HHB CV22 - 6072901-S, involving real property 
located at 110 Silver Lane, East Hartford from the fair market value of 
$362,400.00 to the fair market value of $320,000.00 which shall generate a 
reduction of $1,465.00 in property taxes, for the Grand List Year of 2021. 
 

  Motion carried 9/0. 
 

OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO SPEAK 
 
The Mayor thanked the Council for supporting the motion regarding the Silver Lane Plaza 
as well as the efforts of the Redevelopment Agency and others who have been engaged 
in the process thus far. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION By John Morrison 
  seconded by Don Bell 
  to adjourn (9:07 pm) 



 
 
November 1, 2022  Volume 91 8 

 
  Motion carried 9/0.  
 
The Chair wished all a good evening and announced that the next regular meeting of the 
Town Council would be on November 15, 2022. 
 
     Attest  ___________________________________ 
           Jason Marshall 
                               TOWN COUNCIL CLERK 















Fees Committee 1 October 24, 2022 
 

MAJORITY OFFICE/MICROSOFT “TEAMS” 
 

FEES COMMITTEE 
 

October 24, 2022 
 

 
PRESENT Chair Harry Amadasun, Councillors Awet Tsegai and Travis Simpson  
   
ALSO  Connor Martin, Chief of Staff 
PRESENT  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Amadasun called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
August 29, 2022 
 
MOTION By Awet Tsegai 
  seconded by Travis Simpson 

to approve the minutes of the August 29, 2022 meeting. 
 

  Motion carried 3/0.  
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO SPEAK 
 
No one came forward. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

Greater Hartford Transit District Ticket Books 
 
Connor Martin, Chief of Staff stated that at the end of the 2021 fiscal year, the 
Administration purchased 3,628 Greater Hartford Transit District ticket books at a cost of 
$24 each with the intention of reselling them at a discounted rate to the public of $10 per 
book to provide residents who rely on the service with financial relief.  Mr. Martin shared 
that a petition was provided to the Committee from local seniors with the same request.  
The administration anticipates that the books will sell fairly quickly at the discounted rate.   
 
The Committee discussed prioritizing the sale of books based on financial need of 
residents.  The Committee requested detail on how the books are distributed to the 
public as well as confirmation as to which department’s budget accounted for the 
investment.  
 
MOTION  By Travis Simpson 
  seconded by Awet Tsegai 
 

to recommend the Town Council approve setting the sale price the of 
Town’s current inventory of Greater Hartford Transit District ride books at 



Fees Committee 2 October 24, 2022 
 

$10 per book to qualifying residents, provided that purchases be limited to 
2 books per month, until the Town’s supply is exhausted. 
 
Motion carried 3/0. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION By Awet Tsegai 
  seconded by Travis Simpson 
  to adjourn (6:21 p.m.). 
 
  Motion carried 3/0. 
 
cc:  Town Council 
       Mayor Walsh 
        
        
        
 
 



1

Marshall, Jason

From: Martin, Connor
Sent: Tuesday, October 25, 2022 10:35 AM
To: Amadasun, Harry; Simpson, Travis; Tsegai, Awet
Cc: Marshall, Jason
Subject: GHTD ticket booklets

Good morning Council,  
 
I wanted to get back to you regarding the two open items regarding the GHTD tickets.  
 

1. How are they distributed: Residents reach out to either Social Services or Senior Services and have to submit an 
ADA ride number with their payment in order to be eligible for a booklet. Residents obtain an ADA ride number 
through the CT DOT when they are unable to use public transportation due to their disability. The ride number 
qualifies them to participate in ADA Paratransit Services such as the GHTD buses.  

2. What budget does this come from: Senior Services – Contractual Services.  
 
Have a great day! 
 

Connor Martin 
Chief of Staff  
Mayor’s Office 
Town of East Hartford 
Phone number 860-291-7203 
Cell phone 860-270-9681 
cmartin@easthartfordct.gov 
 

















































Town of East Hartford  Code of Ordinances 

 
Sec 10.1 Fiscal Year 
 

CHAPTER 10. Finance 
and Taxation 

 
Sec 10-3 Disposition of 
Town-Owned Property 
Other Than Real Estate 

   
 

Chapter 10. FINANCE AND TAXATION 

ARTICLE 1. 

Sec. 10-1.  Fiscal Year.  

 
The fiscal year for the transaction of the business of the Town shall close annually on June 
30, and all officers and departments of the Town shall close accounts for each fiscal year 
on said day.

Sec. 10-2. Reports of Tenants Moving. 

(a) The owner, manager or other person in control of any apartment building or 
groups of buildings containing five or more dwelling units as defined In the zoning ordinance, 
shall notify the Director of Finance, in writing on forms prescribed by the Director of Finance 
with ten days after receipt of notice from the tenant or occupant of any dwelling unit of his 
intent to move, of such notice and name of the tenant moving. 

(b) Failure to comply with this section shall result in a fine, as provided in the 
Schedule of Fees. 

Sec. 10-3. Disposition of Town-Owned Property Other Than Real 
Estate. 
 

(a) No Town-owned property other than real estate shall be sold or otherwise disposed of 
by any Town department without approval of the Council except as provided in this section 
and except if such property is the subject of a trade-in agreement as part of the purchase of 
replacement or similar property. 
 

(b) Any offer to purchase Town-owned property other than real estate shall be made in 
writing to the Director of Public Works, who shall thereupon give notice in writing to all Town 
Directors that the offer has been received and inquire whether or not any department has 
use or potential use for the property. Any Director, who wishes to use such property, shall 
notify the Director of Public Works in writing of such interest within fourteen days of receipt 
of the notice from the Director of Public Works. The Director of Public Works shall report 
the offer to purchase such property to the Council and shall certify as to whether or not any 
Town Director is interested in the property. The offer to purchase the property may be 
referred to the Committee for Disposition of Town-Owned Property Other Than Real Estate for 
its recommendation. 
 

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a) of this section, the Mayor may 
authorize the disposal of any furniture or equipment that is determined by the Finance 
Director to be unsuitable for town use and of any computer equipment that is determined 























































































  

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

 

DATE:  November 10, 2022  

TO:  Richard F. Kehoe, Chair 

FROM:  Mayor Michael P. Walsh 

RE:  Construction and Maintenance Agreement  - CT Southern Railroad  

 

Please find the enclosed construction and maintenance agreement between the Town and the 

Connecticut Southern Railroad Inc. for the McAuliffe Park at-grade crossing. ARPA funding in 

the amount of $500,000 for this project has been appropriated by the Town Council.  

 

The agreement would allow the Town to authorize the railroad company to construct and 

maintain the at-grade crossing, which will provide the residents of Veterans Terrace Housing 

Complex located on Columbus Circle a safe and convenient way to access McAuliffe Park. 

 

Please place on the Town Council Agenda for the November 15, 2022 Town Council meeting.  

 

Thank you. 

C: R. Gentile, Assistant Corporation Counsel 

 D. Wilson, Town Engineer 

 C. Martin, Chief of Staff 

 

 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 
CONNECTICUT SOUTHERN RAILROAD, INC. 

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
 

RR MILEPOST 0.75 
TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD, COUNTY OF EAST HARTFORD, STATE OF CONNECTICUT 

 
 
THIS CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) made this          
day of                      2022 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of East Hartford, hereinafter 
called "Agency", and Connecticut Southern Railroad, Inc., hereinafter called “Railway": 
 
 WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, Agency proposes a public pedestrian path and at-grade crossing near McAuliffe Park 
at Railway’s Milepost 0.75, hereafter called "Project"; located in the Town of East Hartford, State of 
Connecticut; and 
 
WHEREAS, Agency is willing to undertake the expense for the Project as detailed in Exhibit B, 
except as provided in Section I. (C) of the Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof as Exhibit A is a Project Print showing 
the type, size and location of the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, Railway is willing to coordinate and cooperate with Agency with respect to the Project 
upon the terms and conditions herein stated and not otherwise; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Project shall be constructed in accordance with full plans and full designs which 
shall be subject to the mutual approval of Railway and Agency. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, it is mutually 
agreed as follows: 
 
I. Performance of Work 
 
Agency and Railway will each perform various items of work as described below: 
 

A. WORK TO BE PERFORMED AND MATERIALS FURNISHED BY EITHER AGENCY OR ITS 
CONTRACTOR AT AGENCY EXPENSE. 

 
 

1. Construction of Pedestrian Path Outside the Railroad ROW 
Take all necessary, reasonable steps, including, without limitation, funding for and 
construction of the pedestrian path located outside of the Railroad’s property and 
Railroad’s right-of-way. 
 
 

  



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 
2. Prohibition of Crossing Traffic  

The Agency shall prohibit any traffic from using the crossing until construction is 
complete. 
 

 
B. WORK TO BE PERFORMED AND MATERIALS FURNISHED BY RAILWAY AT AGENCY 

EXPENSE. 
 

1. Project Plans & Specifications and Construction 
Except as otherwise herein provided, furnish all plans, engineering, supervision, 
labor, material, supplies and equipment necessary for construction of the Project 
within Railroad’s right-of-way. 
 

2. Flagging 
 

Railway will schedule and perform flagging and furnish requested services and 
devices during construction operations of Railway or its contractor, as deemed 
necessary by Railway.  Any flagging cost or protective services performed by Railway 
or its contractor shall be at Agency’s expense. 
 

3.   Preliminary Engineering, Construction Engineering, and Inspection  
Perform administrative and engineering services, including project research, 
correspondence, Surface/Signal Site Survey, create Basis of Design documents, 
RR surface & RR signal vendor solicitation, RR surface & RR signal construction 
management, plan review, project controls, agency invoicing, process 
agreements, and progress project to completion.  
 

4.  Construction 
Construction of the at- grade crossing, pedestrian gates, emergency exits, and all 
other improvements within the Railway Right of Way as set forth on Exhibit B. 

 
 

C. COSTS AND PAYMENTS. 
 
Railway’s financial contribution to the total Project cost shall be zero percent (0%) of the 
total Project cost, or zero dollars ($0.00) based upon the confirmed construction contract 
amount as set forth on Exhibit B.  The total Project cost may be modified by amendment 
with the mutual consent of Agency and Railway.  In the interest of clarity and to avoid 
ambiguity, the flagging and protective services provided by Railway pursuant to Section I. 
(B) above are included in the total Project cost.    
 
 

II. Construction Plans and Specifications 
 
Railway’s contractor shall perform its work in accordance with detailed plans and specifications which 
shall be prepared by Railway’s contractor and submitted to Railway for approval of those sections 
that are applicable to Railway’s right-of-way, facility or operations.  No work pursuant to said plans 
and specifications shall be performed on the right-of-way of Railway prior to receipt of notices to 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

proceed given by Railway and Agency or their authorized representatives.  Nothing provided in this 
Agreement with respect to said plans and specifications shall be construed or deemed to be a 
ratification or adoption by Railway of either or both said plans as its own.  
 
 
III. Traffic Protection, Safety and Flagging 
 
All work herein provided for on Railway's right-of-way shall be performed at such time and in such 
manner as not to interfere unreasonably with the movement of trains or traffic upon the tracks of 
Railway. Agency or Agency’s contractor shall reimburse Railway for one hundred percent (100%) of 
the actual costs related to flagging per Section I. (B)(1) of this Agreement. Railway will submit bills 
for flagging and other protective services and devices during the progress of the work contemplated 
by this Agreement. Railway may bill the Agency monthly or periodically for its force account when 
costs exceed One Thousand dollars ($1,000). 
 
Wherever the safeguarding of trains or traffic of Railway is mentioned in this Agreement, it is intended 
to cover and include all users of Railway's tracks having permission for such use. 
 
IV. Conditions, Restrictions, and Limitations 
 
All the aforementioned rights are granted subject to the terms, provisions, conditions, restrictions, 
limitations, covenants, reservations and exceptions contained in this Agreement, including, without 
limitation, those set forth in the Right of Entry Agreement, Attachment 2 (Roadway Worker Protection 
Training Policy) and Attachment 3 (Contractor Safety Rules), each as attached hereto and by this 
reference incorporated herein; Railway’s contractor, in the exercise of the rights and in the conduct 
of the Project, shall and will do, keep, observe and perform each and all of the terms, provisions, 
conditions, restrictions, limitations, covenants, reservations and exceptions thereof. 
 
Railway shall ensure that its contractor(s) obtain and provide to Railway evidence that such 
contractor(s) have procured the insurance coverage described in Exhibit C, hereto attached, 
covering their work on Railway’s property in connection with the Project. 
 
 
V. Intentionally Omitted 
 
VI. Funding and Signatory Warranty 
 
Agency acknowledges that it has available all funds necessary to complete the Project, including 
the reimbursement of Railway for the estimated costs, as set forth in the initial estimate (Exhibit 
B). 
 
Each party to this Agreement certifies that its signatory has the authority to enter into this 
Agreement on its behalf. 
 
VII. Term, Ownership, and Maintenance Responsibilities 
 
The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and shall continue for a period not 
to exceed the earlier of the condition precedent in Section IX. (B), if it occurs, or twelve (12) 
months after either (i) the date construction commences within Railway’s Right-of-Way or (ii) 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

completion of the construction of the Project, as determined by Railway and subject to Section 
IX. (C). Agency’s and Railway’s obligations under Sections X. and XI. (B) shall survive the term 
of this Agreement.   
 
Upon completion of the Project, Railway, at Railway’s expense, will be responsible for the future 
maintenance of Railway’s track infrastructure. The Railway at Agency expense will maintain the at- 
grade crossing, pedestrian gates, emergency exits, and all other improvements in the Railway 
Right of Way as set forth on Exhibit B. 

 
 
VIII. Assignment 
 
Neither party has the right to assign this Agreement without the consent of the other.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding on the parties hereto, their 
successors and permitted assigns. 
 
IX. Construction 
 

A. The parties acknowledge that time is of the essence in the completion of the Project. 
 

B. Railway shall complete all construction for the Project located within Railroad’s property and 
Railroad’s right-of-way within ten (10) months of the Effective Date.   
 

 
X.  Indemnity 
 
As a material inducement for entering into this Agreement, and without which Railway would not 
enter into the same, Agency covenants and agrees that: 
  

A. AGENCY SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS RAILWAY, ITS 
PARENTS, AFFILIATES, SUBSIDIARIES, AND THE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, 
SHAREHOLDERS, AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES OF EACH (“RAILWAY INDEMNITEES”) 
FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, DEMANDS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, 
CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, AND LIABILITIES OF EVERY KIND (INCLUDING 
REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES, COURT COSTS, AND OTHER EXPENSES 
RELATED THERETO) FOR INJURY TO OR DEATH OF A PERSON OR FOR LOSS OF 
OR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY WHATSOEVER (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED 
TO PROPERTY OWNED BY OR IN THE CARE, CUSTODY, OR CONTROL OF 
RAILWAY INDEMNITEES, AGENCY OR ITS DESIGNEES), ARISING OUT OF OR IN 
CONNECTION WITH ANY WORK DONE, ACTION TAKEN OR PERMITTED BY THE 
AGENCY, ITS CONTRACTORS, AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES UNDER Section I. A. 1 of.  
THIS AGREEMENT, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT OF THE CRIMINAL OR INTENTIONAL 
ACTS, OR SOLE NEGLIGENCE, OF RAILROAD INDEMNITEES. 
  
IT IS THE EXPRESS INTENTION OF AGENCY AND RAILWAY THAT THE INDEMNITY 
PROVIDED FOR IN THIS PARAGRAPH, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY 
LAW, INDEMNIFIES RAILWAY INDEMNITEES FOR THEIR OWN NEGLIGENCE, 
WHETHER THAT NEGLIGENCE IS ACTIVE OR PASSIVE, OR IS  A CONCURRING 
CAUSE OF THE INJURY, DEATH OR DAMAGE; PROVIDED THAT SAID INDEMNITY 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

SHALL NOT PROTECT RAILWAY INDEMNITEES FROM LIABILITY FOR DEATH, 
INJURY OR DAMAGE ARISING SOLELY OUT OF THE CRIMINAL OR INTENTIONAL 
ACTIONS OR SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF RAILWAY INDEMNITEES.  IT IS STIPULATED 
BY THE PARTIES THAT RAILWAY INDEMNITEES OWE NO DUTY TO AGENCY, ITS 
CLIENT, OR THEIR DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS OR INVITEES 
TO PROVIDE A REASONABLY SAFEWORK PLACE AND THAT ALL PARTIES 
ENTERING ONTO RAILWAY PROPERTY DO SO AT THEIR SOLE RISK. 
 

B. Agency shall be responsible for all damages and expenses on account of injuries, 
(including death) to, and property damage of, any of its employees, agents, subcontractors 
or representatives while on the property of Railway and shall indemnify, defend and hold 
Railway Indemnitees harmless from all claims of damage or suits which may arise, except 
and only to the extent that such claims, losses, damages or expenses are caused by the 
criminal or intentional acts, or  negligence of Railway Indemnitees. 
 

C. IN NO EVENT SHALL RAILWAY INDEMNITEES OR AGENCY BE LIABLE TO THE 
OTHER FOR ANY PUNITIVE, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL 
DAMAGES. 
 
 

XI.  Cancellation of Project; Termination of Agreement: Remedies 
 

A. If Agency determines it is necessary to cancel the Project for any reason, Agency may 
terminate this Agreement by delivery of written notice to Railway. Upon Railway’s receipt 
of such notice, Railway shall proceed to stop work. 

 
B. Agency shall reimburse Railway for (i) all reasonable costs and expenses incurred in 

returning Railway’s property to its original condition to Railway’s reasonable satisfaction, 
and (ii) any of Railway’s expenses incurred in connection with its provision of flagging and 
protective services up until the time of termination. 
 

C. Any delays in or failure of performance by either party under this Agreement will not 
constitute default or give rise to any claims for damages or penalties if the delay or failure 
is directly caused by a Force Majeure Event. A “Force Majeure Event” means any of the 
following and any other event, which are events, circumstances, or conditions beyond the 
reasonable control of the parties, including, without limitation, acts of God, riots, wars 
(whether declared or not), equipment malfunction, derailments, civil disturbances, civil 
disobedience, insurrections, acts of terrorism, sabotage, rockslides, landslides, 
snowslides, avalanches, earthquakes, explosions, floods, fire, underground damage, 
lightning, sustained abnormal weather conditions or other natural catastrophes and/or 
strikes, work slowdown, lockouts or other industrial disturbances, pandemics, epidemics, 
health emergencies, viruses (e.g. SARS Cov-2), disease (e.g. COVID-19), plague, 
changes in law or regulations, quarantine, travel restrictions, differing or unforeseeable 
site conditions, acts of governmental agencies or authorities (whether or not such acts are 
made in response to other Force Majeure Events), whether or not of a similar kind or 
nature to any of the foregoing. The parties agree that a Force Majeure Event does not 
include economic hardship, changes in market conditions, or insufficiency of funds. Under 
no circumstances shall an obligation to pay monies owed under this Agreement be 
delayed, deferred, postponed or excused by a Force Majeure Event. 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 
XII.  General Provisions 
 
SOLE BENEFIT.  This Agreement is intended for the sole benefit of the parties hereto.  Nothing in 
this Agreement is intended or may be construed to give any person, firm, corporation, or other entity, 
other than Railway Indemnitees, the parties’ successors and permitted assigns, any right or benefit 
pursuant to any provision or term of this Agreement, and all provisions and terms of this Agreement 
are and will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties to this Agreement.    
  
WAIVER.  Any waiver at any time by one party of a breach hereof by the other party will extend only 
to the particular breach so waived and will not impair or affect the existence of any provision, 
condition, obligation, or requirement of this Agreement or the right of either party hereto thereafter to 
avail itself of any rights under this Agreement with respect to a subsequent breach.  No provision of 
this Agreement shall be waived by any act or knowledge of the parties hereto, but only by a written 
instrument signed by the party waiving a right hereunder.  
 
SEVERABILITY.  If any part of this Agreement is determined to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, 
such determination shall not affect the validity, legality or enforceability of any other part of this 
Agreement and the remaining parts of this Agreement shall be enforced as if such invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable part were not contained herein. 
 
MERGER.  This Agreement and the exhibits attached hereto contain the entire agreement of the 
parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, and supersede all prior negotiations, 
agreements and understandings with respect thereto, written or oral.  
 
AMENDMENT.  No provision of this Agreement shall be modified without the written concurrence of 
the parties hereto.   
 
HEADINGS.  The headings of the Sections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and 
are not intended to govern, limit or aid in the construction of any term or provision of this Agreement. 
 
CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS.  The terms of this Agreement have been arrived at after mutual 
negotiation and, therefore, it is the intention of the parties that its terms be not construed against any 
of the parties by reason of the fact that it was prepared by one of the parties. 
 
GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement will be construed in accordance with the laws of the state 
where the work is performed. 
 
COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
may be deemed an original for any purpose.  
 
SURVIVAL.  Agency’s and Railway’s indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement along with any other right or obligation that is, by its express terms 
or nature and context, intended to survive. 
  



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 
The following is a list of the attachments: 
 
Exhibit A – Project Plan Set  
Exhibit B – Rail Services Cost Estimate 
Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements 
Attachment 1 – G&W Code of Ethics and Conduct 
Attachment 2 – Roadway Worker Protection Training Policy 
Attachment 3 – Contractor Safety Rules 
  



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the 
day and year hereinafter written. 
 
 
 
WITNESS:      TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD 
 
 
                                                                             
       Authorized Representative Signature 
  
        
                                   
       Authorized Representative (print) / Title 
         
 
 
 
 
 
WITNESS:   CONNECTICUT SOUTHERN RAILROAD,  
                                                                                       INC. 
 
 
 
              
       Authorized Representative Signature 
 
 
                                   
       Authorized Representative (print) / Title  
 
 
 
 



IN
ST

AL
L 

SI
G

N
 "W

AL
K 

BI
KE

 A
C

R
O

SS
 T

R
AC

KS
"

IN
ST

AL
L 

5'
 W

ID
E 

EM
ER

G
EN

C
Y 

EX
IT

O
R

N
AM

EN
TA

L 
PI

C
KE

T 
SW

IN
G

 G
AT

E,
4'

 H
IG

H
 W

IT
H

 S
IG

N
SS

 (T
YP

.)

4'
 O

PF
 (T

YP
.)

2'
 D

ET
EC

TA
BL

E 
W

AR
N

IN
G

ST
R

IP
 (T

YP
.)

N
EW

 1
0'

 M
U

LT
I-U

SE
 T

R
AI

L

10
' M

U
LT

I-U
SE

 T
R

AI
L

IN
ST

AL
L 

R
AI

LR
O

AD
 F

LA
SH

IN
G

 L
IG

H
TS

AN
D

 1
6'

 P
ED

ES
TR

IA
N

 G
AT

E 
W

IT
H

 S
KI

R
TS

 (T
YP

)

M
C

A
U

LI
FF

E 
PA

R
K

N
EW

 R
U

BB
ER

 F
LA

N
G

EW
AY

 G
U

AR
D

W
IT

H
 B

IT
U

M
IN

O
U

S 
C

O
N

C
R

ET
E

 C
R

O
SS

IN
G

 S
U

R
FA

C
E

N
EW

 S
ID

EW
AL

K 
R

AM
P

2' 
(T

YP
.) X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

XX

X

X

X

X
X

X
X

℄

℄

IN
ST

AL
L 

SI
G

N
 "W

AL
K 

BI
KE

 A
C

R
O

SS
 T

R
AC

KS
"

12
' M

IN

R
22

'

R5'

R2'

R2
0'

R2
2'

IN
ST

AL
L 

R
IP

R
AP

 (T
YP

)
10

" D
IP

S
H
E
E
T
 
N
O
.

CO
NN

ECTICUT

TOW
N
OFEASTHA

RT
FO
R
DPREPARED BY:

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
ENGINEERING DIVISION
740 MAIN STREET
EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108
TEL. (860) 291-7380
FAX. (860) 289-0831
www.easthartfordct.gov

MAP DATE

DRAWN BY

DESIGNED BY

CHECKED BY

22-A-005
MCAULIFFE PARK RAILROAD FOOTBRIDGE

N

Fe
et

0
25

50

1

Exhibit A



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 Exhibit B 
Rail Services Cost Estimate 

 
 

MAINTENANCE FEES  

AGENCY shall pay RAILWAY a base annual fee of $ 5,000.00 per year as a minimum signal 
maintenance fee (“Signal Maintenance Fee”). AGENCY shall have no right of refund for any cause 
whatsoever with respect to Signal Maintenance Fee payments paid to RAILWAY, which said sum 
shall be payable annually in advance commencing on the Effective Date and each anniversary of 
the Effective Date thereafter. 
 
All future maintenance, repair and/or reconstruction of the Crossing surface shall be performed by 
RAILWAY, at the sole cost of the AGENCY, on an as-needed basis as determined by RAILWAY.   

RAILWAY reserves the right to adjust the Signal Maintenance Fee on each anniversary date of this 
Agreement, or at such other times as conditions warrant, but in no event more than once per 
calendar year and in no event shall either such increase exceed five percent (5%) of the fee 
assessed for the immediately preceding year.  Billing or acceptance by RAILWAY of any Signal 
Maintenance Fee shall not imply a definite term or otherwise restrict either party from canceling this 
Agreement as herein provided. 

At no time shall the Signal Maintenance Fee be less than those fees payable as of the Effective Date 
of this Agreement. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Railroad: Region:

Agency: State:

DOT #: COUNTY:

ROADWAY: CITY:

01/02/23

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING:

Contracted & Administrative Engineering Services 20,000$                    

Subtotal  20,000$                      

CONSTRUCTION & CLOSEOUT:

Contracted & Administrative Engineering Services 17,100$                    

Subtotal 17,100$                      

FLAGGING SERVICE:

Contracted or Railroad Flagmen Services 15 Days 21,000$                    

Subtotal 21,000$                      

UTILITY WORK:

Power Service -$                         

Other -$                         

Subtotal -$                         

CONTRACT WORK:

Outside Services -$                             

Design & Labor & Material 235,135$                  

Subtotal 235,135$                  

RAILROAD TRACK: 

Labor & Material -$                             

Subtotal -$                         

RAILROAD SIGNAL & COMMUNICATION: 

Labor & Material -$                             

Subtotal -$                         

PROJECT SUBTOTAL: 293,235$                    

Public Project Admin: 0.00% -$                             

Contingencies: 10.00% 29,323$                      

PROJECT TOTAL: ***************************************************** 322,558$                    

CURRENT AUTHORIZED BUDGET: ***************************************************** -$                            

TOTAL SUPPLEMENT REQUESTED: ***************************************************** 322,558$                    

DIVISION OF COST:

Agency 100.00% 322,558$                    

Railroad 0.00% -$                             

NOTE:  Estimate is based on FULL CROSSING CLOSURE during work by Railroad Forces & Contractors.

Estimated prepared by: SKS Approved by:  Public Project Department

DATE: 07/06/22 REVISED: 07/06/22 DATE: 07/06/22

Force Account Estimate OOM

Connecticut Southern Railroad (CSOR) NORTHERN

Town of East Hartford CT

AGENCY PROJECT NUMBER:  ESTIMATE SUBJECT TO REVISION AFTER: 

This estimate has been prepared based on site conditions, anticipated work duration periods, material prices, labor rates, manpower and resource availability, and other factors known as of the date 

prepared.  The actual cost for the railroad work may differ based upon the agency's requirements, their contractor's work procedures, and/or other conditions that become apparent once construction 

commences or during the progress of the work.

TBD Hartford

McAuliffe Park Pedestrian Path

DESCRIPTION: GEC Services for support of the Pedestrian Path across CSOR at MP 0.75. Tasks include project research, 

correspondence, Surface/Signal Site Survey, create BoDs, surface/signal vendor solicitation, surface/signal 

construction, plan review, project controls, process agreements, and progress project to completion.

East Hartford

Exhibit B



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

Exhibit C 
Insurance Requirements 

 
The coverages and limits required hereunder shall include the liability assumed by the named insured 
under the indemnification provisions contained in the Agreement between the Agency and Railway 
covering work to be performed upon or adjacent to Railway’s property Mile Post 0.75:   

 
The parties agree that the following coverages are material requirements of this Agreement and such 
coverages shall not be limited by Agency’s inability to indemnify and hold harmless Railroad Indemnitees 
under applicable laws and regulations: 

 

(a) Agency shall, at its own cost and expense, prior to the commencement of any work pursuant to this 
Agreement, procure and thereafter maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the following types 
and minimum amounts of insurance: 

(i) Agency shall maintain Public Liability or Commercial General Liability Insurance 
(“CGL”) including Contractual Liability Coverage and CG 24 17 “Contractual Liability-
Railroads” endorsement, covering all liabilities assumed by Agency under this 
Agreement, without exception or restriction of any kind, with a combined single limit 
of no less than two million dollars ($2,000,000) for bodily injury and/or property 
damage liability per occurrence, and an aggregate limit of no less than six million 
dollars ($6,000,000) per annual policy period. Such insurance policy shall be 
endorsed to provide a Waiver of Subrogation in favor of Railway Indemnitees and 
shall name Railway Indemnitees as Additional Insureds.  An Umbrella or Excess 
policy may be utilized to satisfy the required limits of liability under this section but 
must “follow form” and afford no less coverage than the primary policy. 

(ii) Agency shall maintain Commercial Automobile Insurance for all owned, non-owned 
and hired vehicles with a combined single limit of not less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000) for bodily injury and/or property damage liability per occurrence.  Such 
insurance policy shall be endorsed to provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of 
Railway Indemnitees and shall name Railway Indemnitees as Additional Insureds. 

(iii) Agency shall maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability 
Insurance for its employees (if any) with minimum limits of no less than one million 
dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury by accident, each accident; one million dollars 
($1,000,000) for bodily injury by disease, policy limit; one million dollars ($1,000,000) 
for bodily injury by disease, each employee.  Such insurance policy shall be endorsed 
to provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of Railway Indemnitees. 

(iv) Prior to construction within fifty (50) feet of the Railway’s tracks, Agency shall 
purchase Railroad Protective Liability Insurance naming Railway Indemnitees as the 
named insureds with limits of two million dollars ($2,000,000) each occurrence and 
six million dollars ($6,000,000) aggregate limit. The policy shall be issued on a 
standard ISO form CG 00 35 12 03 or, if available, obtain such coverage from 
Railway. 
 

(b) The following general insurance requirements shall apply: 
(i) The specified insurance policies must be affected under standard form policies underwritten 

by insurers licensed in the state where work is to be performed and carry a minimum Best’s 
rating of “A-” and size “Class VII” or better.  Railway reserves the right to reject as inadequate 
any insurance coverage provided by an insurer that is rated less than the ratings specified in 
this section. 

(ii) All coverages shall be primary and non-contributory to any insurance coverages maintained 
by Railway Indemnitees. 

(iii) All insurance policies shall be endorsed to provide Railway with thirty (30) days prior written 
notice of cancellation, non-renewal or material changes. 

(iv) Agency shall provide Railway with certificates of insurance evidencing the insurance 
coverages, terms and conditions required prior to commencement of any activities on or 
about the Property. Said certificates should reference this Agreement by date and description 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

and shall be furnished to Railway at the following address, or to such other address as 
Railway may hereafter specify: 
 
Connecticut Southern Railroad, Inc. (CSOR); Attn: Public Projects Consultant: Alfred 
Benesch & Company, 4614 Red Fox Road, Oshkosh, WI 54904 AND Connecticut Southern 
Railroad, Inc., Attn: Katelyn Krysiak, 75 Hammond Street, Worcester, MA 01610. 
 

(v) If any policies providing the required coverages are written on a Claims-Made basis, the 
following shall apply: 
 
a. The retroactive date shall be prior to the commencement of work. 
b. Agency shall maintain such policies on a continuous basis. 
c. If there is a change in insurer or policies are cancelled or not renewed, Agency shall 

purchase an extended reporting period of not less than three (3) years after the 
Agreement expiration or termination date. 

d. Agency shall arrange for adequate time for reporting of any loss under this Agreement. 
 

c. Railway may require Agency to purchase additional insurance if Railway reasonably determines that 
the amount of insurance then being maintained by Agency is insufficient in light of all relevant factors.  If 
Agency is required to purchase additional insurance, Railway will notify Agency. Failure of Agency to comply 
within thirty (30) days shall be considered a default subject to termination of the Agreement. 
 

d.  Furnishing of insurance by Agency shall not limit Agency’s liability under this Agreement but shall be 
additional security therefor. 

 

e. The above indicated insurance coverages shall be enforceable by any legitimate claimant after the 
termination or cancellation of this Agreement, or any amendment hereto, whether by expiration of time, by 
operation of law or otherwise, so long as the basis of the claim against the insurance company occurred during 
the period of time when the Agreement was in effect and the insurance was in force. 

 

f. Failure to provide the required insurance coverages or endorsements (including contractual liability 
endorsement) or adequate reporting time shall be at Agency’s sole risk 

 

g. If contractors are utilized by Agency, Agency agrees to require all such contractors to comply with the 
insurance requirements of this Exhibit C. 

 

Agency shall keep said insurance in full force and effect until all work to be performed upon or adjacent to the 
Property under this Agreement is completed to the satisfaction of and accepted by Railroad and thereafter 
until Agency has fulfilled the provisions of this Agreement with respect to the removal of tools, equipment and 
materials from the Property. 

 
 
  



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

Attachment 1 
 

GWI CODE OF ETHICS AND CONDUCT 
 

GWI Code of Ethics and Conduct: This document is located online at 
  
https://gwrr.com/about_us/code-of-ethics 
 
 
I certify that I have reviewed and understand the GWI Code of Ethics and Conduct and agree to 
abide by this Code for the duration of this Agreement while performing services for Connecticut 
Southern Railroad, Inc. 
 
 Town of East Hartford 
 
 
_________________________________   
Printed Name, Title      
 
 
 
 
_________________________________   
Signature       
 
 
_________________________________   
Date 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

Attachment 2 
 

ROADWAY WORKER PROTECTION TRAINING POLICY 
 

Railroad and Contractor have a mutual interest in providing a safe workplace for the employees of 
both parties and in maintaining the integrity and security of Railroad’s facilities and property (the 
“Property”).  To help ensure this goal, Railroad has instituted a training program for all employees 
of Contractor or its subcontractor(s) seeking admission to the Property (the “Program”). These 
employees must successfully complete the Program. Contractor shall cause its employees, and shall 
cause its subcontractor to require its employees, to successfully complete the Program on an annual 
basis, at their sole cost and expense, prior to their admission onto the Property. The Program will be 
available on-line and administered by a third party on behalf of GWI. The cost per employee 
certification attempt is $75.00 USD, payable via credit or purchasing card. 
 
To access the G&W Roadway Worker Protection Training for Railroad Contractors Course on the 
RWT 
On-Line Portal please follow these instructions: 

 Start at website https://railpros.com/training/ 
 Click on the “Online Training” button 
 Select the G&W course by clicking on the course name or simply add to cart 
 If creating an account for multiple people, adjust the quantity purchased to match the tests 

needed 
 Create an account as a new user or use previous login information 
 A username will be assigned after an account is created 
 Fill out all of the fields on the payment page and submit 
 You will be asked if this is for you or someone else, if it is for your use select you. If it is for 

members of your team, enter the name and contact information of those that will be taking 
the test 

 After receiving the username and password go back to the On-Line University page and 
select the G&W course again 

 Complete the registration process and training 
 

All employees of the Contractor or its subcontractor(s) will be required to submit a copy of their 
training certification to the railroad personnel managing the applicable project 
  



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

   
 

Attachment 3 
 

 
 

Contractor Safety Rules 
 

 
 
 
 

 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 
 
 

 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 
 
 

 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 
 
 

 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 
 
 

 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 
 
 

 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 

 

 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 
 
 

 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 
 
 

 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 

 

 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 

 

 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 

 

 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

 

 
 
 

 



 
RR Project #: TBD 

 

The undersigned has read and understands these Genesee & Wyoming “Safety 
Guidelines for Contractors and Non-GWRR Personnel”: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Printed Name, Title 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature 
 
 
 
 
 
Date 

 
Contractor Safety Rules 


	11-15-22 Agenda REVISED.pdf
	11-15-22 Town Council Packet.pdf
	11-15-22 Agenda.pdf
	5A 11-01-2022 Exec Session Mins.pdf
	CALL TO ORDER
	ADJOURNMENT

	5B 11-01-22 Minutes.pdf
	CALL TO ORDER
	OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON AGENDA ITEMS
	OPPORTUNITY FOR COUNCILLORS TO DIRECT QUESTIONS TO THE ADMINISTRATION
	Councillor Simpson asked the Mayor to confirm if the East Hartford’s Superintendent of schools, Nathan Quesnel is leaving the position.  The Mayor confirmed that Mr. Quesnel intends to leave at the end of the school year.
	COUNCIL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTERS
	OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO SPEAK


	6A Disposal of Mower.pdf
	6A Disposal of Ford Taurus.pdf
	8A Amendment of Conservation Easement re Rentschler Field.pdf
	8B Authorization of Municipal Tax-Exempt Capital Lease Purchase Agreement.pdf
	8C McCartin School Demo Request.pdf
	8C Ordinance Ref for Demo.pdf
	8D O’Brien School Roof Replacement Project.pdf
	Scan002.PDF
	Scan003.PDF

	8E Click it Or Ticket Grant.pdf
	8G Refund of Taxes.pdf
	8F Holiday Fest Amusement Permit.pdf
	Insert from: "7A GHTD Books.pdf"
	ExtractPage1.pdf
	Fees Backup Senior Center.pdf


	8H 2022-RailroadMaintaince.pdf
	8H 2022-11-10_Memo_RailroadMaintaince (004).pdf
	Town of New Hartford - CSO - McAuliffe Park CMA (004).PDF
	Town of New Hartford-CSO Final 20221109
	220706 OOM - East Hartford, CT - McAuliffe Ped Path
	McAuliffe RR Pedestrian Crossing- 6-30-2022 - Pg 1



